HISTORY OF THE EAST ISLIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

The history of the East Islip School District begins before 1857. At that time here was a one-room building. It is known, although not recorded, that the building existed before this date.

East Islip's one‑room school was situated on land given by the Nicoll Estate and was located at a point near the southern end of the present Timber Point Elementary School property. Although a street named School House Road exists in this area, the original School House Road where this building was located, has been lost in the development of the area into homes. The present School House Road was at that time known as the Mill Road and the old School House Road branched off from it. When the area was developed into homes, the Mill road was widened and renamed by the developers.

In 1858 a two‑story building was erected which had only two rooms. The school district has in its possession an oil painting of this building, painted by an amateur artist who was a longtime resident of East Islip, Mr. Maitland Hanford. In January 1885 this building was destroyed by fire. For two terms school was held in a temporary building in East Islip, called the "Wigwam."

During 1885 $8,000.00 was appropriated for a three‑room building and $500.00 for two acres of land on South Country Road (today's Main Street). This land was located east of the village and remained the location of East Islip's school for many years. Between 1892 and 1905 additional rooms were added so that by 1905 it had grown to a nine‑room school.

As time went on, the enrollment of the district increased. Through the generosity of Mrs. W. Bayard Cutting, the playground area was increased to ten acres. By 1923 the school population had grown so that two temporary buildings had to be erected. In 1924, the taxpayers of the district approved the construction of the present three‑story building. The cornerstone was laid October 12, 1925, and the building was opened in September of 1927. It was with the opening of these new facilities that East Islip began to offer a full four‑year high school program.

When this building was ready for occupancy, the old nine room building was sold to Mr. Frank Buchacek, who had the building cut into sections and moved to Laurel Avenue, north of New Street, where the sections were made into homes. These houses are still situated at this location and some of them still show the "gingerbread" which was a distinguishing feature of the architecture of this building.

Though the district escaped the early blows of the past war building boom, the impact of home development eventually caught up with East Islip. By 1950 the need for added space was obvious. In May 1951, the taxpayers approved a proposal for renting temporary quarters, which could take care of the increased enrollment. This was a three‑room building on Railroad Avenue which was rented from Mr. "Frank Vanacek and was known as the "Annex."

Inasmuch as the renting of additional classroom space was only a stopgap means of solving the growth in enrollment, a special meeting was held July 31, 1952, at which an appropriation of $890,000.00 for a new addition was approved. This amount provided for the completion of two one‑story wings with complete facilities for industrial arts, home economics, and additional elementary classrooms. It also provided for a cafeteria, an administrative suite, and a new gymnasium. This new gymnasium was named in honor of William T. (Pete) Rogers, long‑time physical education teacher and coach at East Islip. "Coach" Rogers was honored for his many years of dedicated teaching and coaching. Extensive alterations were also made to the "old building" which provided additional classrooms, new library facilities, and a fully equipped auditorium. Classes began to make use of these additions in the spring of 1954. 

The addition mentioned above had no sooner been occupied when it became apparent that the pressure of Long Island's population growth was making itself felt on the East Islip District and that within a short time, additional elementary classroom space would be needed. In addition, if the elementary enrollment was growing, in the more distant future high school enrollment would grow also. Therefore, plans were made for the purchase of additional land in Islip Terrace. 

At the Annual Meeting on May 4, 1954, the Board of Education was authorized to investigate the purchase of land on the east side of Wantagh Avenue In Islip Terrace. At the same time, the purchase of additional playground space for the Main Street building was authorized. At Special Meetings on October 1, 1954, and January 19, 1955, the Islip Terrace land was authorized to be purchased for the construction of an elementary school and for future school growth. The following fall, on November 4, 1955, a bond issue was approved for the construction of an elementary school on the newly purchased land in Islip Terrace. In September 1957, this school was opened with a capacity of 935 students.

Once again the combination high school and elementary school in East Islip was starting to feel the strain of overcrowding as growing pains started to make themselves felt in the high school. On February 15, 1956, the purchase of a tract of land on Timber Point Road was given approval by the voters of the district. During the spring of 1958, a bond issue was approved for the construction of a second elementary school. This one was to be built on the Timber Point Road site. Construction was begun in July and the school was opened on December 7, 1959, with a capacity of 895 students.

Now the Junior‑Senior High School had full use of the Main Street building, with the exception of several Kindergarten rooms; but even these facilities were inadequate for a satisfactory school program. As a result a new senior high school was planned. The construction of this building was authorized by the taxpayers at a special referendum on September 30, 1959. This building was to be located immediately to the east of the Islip Terrace School.

In May 1960, the East Islip Public School System became a village superintendency. Mr. Lawrence H. Gallagher, who had been Supervising Principal, was appointed to the position of first Superintendent of Schools in East Islip.

At about the same time, the two elementary schools were becoming crowded and the "Annex" was being used once again for Kindergarten classes. On March 9, 1961, at a Special Meeting, the purchase of land on Connetquot Avenue in North Great River and a bond issue for the construction of a 600-pupil elementary school was approved. This school is expected to be opened in September 1962. At the same meeting, approval was given for the complete renovation of the Main Street building so that it may be used as a Junior High School with a capacity of 1000 students. Completion of this work is expected for occupancy in September of 1963.

The Junior-Senior High School moved into the new high school building during Easter Vacation this spring, and the first classes were held immediately after the vacation. The building has a capacity of 1200 students. Temporarily, the Junior High will be housed here also, but upon renovation of the Main Street building, they will return to that site. The completion of the Senior High School will permit the expansion of the high school program in all subject matter areas, thus providing the best secondary program possible.

Editors Note: This History was written in 1962. An updated version is forthcoming.

